Zoning Commission

March 9, 2020

7:00 PM

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes
e December9, 2019
e July 8, 2019

Il Review New By-Laws
I Consideration of Zoning Regulations: CBD Oil Establishments
e Discussion with Frost Brown Todd Attorney Austin Musser (filling in for

Hamilton Township Law Director Ben Yoder)
e Audience Comments

Adjourn



Date of Meeting:
Time of Meeting:

Location of Meeting:

Request:

Zoning Commission

Notice of Public Hearing

March 9, 2020
7:00 PM

Hamilton Township Administration Building
7780 South State Route 48, Hamilton Township

The Hamilton Township Zoning Commission has scheduled a
Public Hearing to consider regulations for CBD Oil-specific retail
stores in Hamilton Township. Hamilton Township Trustees
enacted a | year moratorium on all CBD Oil specific retail stores
and urged the Zoning Commission to consider and recommend
parameters for these types of businesses. This will be the 2™
Zoning Commission hearing on CBD Oil.

The plans for the project are available for review at the Administration Building Monday thru
Friday between 8:00am and 5:00pm. Those with questions or concerns regarding the project are
encouraged to review the plans and attend the meeting.

AL franmn

Alexander Kraemer
Hamilton Township

Economic Development and Zoning Director



HAMILTON TOWNSHIP ZONING COMMISSION
July 8,2019

The meeting was called to order at 7:28 p.m.
Members present: Cadi Kelly, Dan Phipps, Eric Reiners,

Ms. Kelly swore in all persons wishing to speak during the meeting.

Ms. Kelly tabled the meeting minutes from the May 13, 2019 meeti

Ms. Lois McKnight, Zoning Contractor, stated that this meeting

: lic hearing to consider
the Stage 2 and 3, preliminary and final site plan review for thé Abode

antage adult family
n just over 5 acres

demolition of the existing structures on the property:

proper permits from the Soil and Water Conservafion I
carth moving activities. The tree line is being mainta
over two acres of the property was rezoned from R-1 to B

d théproperty. In
D for the veterinary office. In
R-3 PUD. The project itself

landscaping and open space, requires a 20 oot buffer ing the geSidential area and a 10 foot
buffer along Rt. 48. They are providing a 30-faot by ;

landscaping along 48. M, ight had suggegted that the ¢

ere is adequate open space in compliance with the PUD. Per
open space iSiset to not be developed as an active
juired to h

oith via an underground detention area. This
gineer’s office as well as the erosion and sediment control
¢t. Public water is provided from a main on State Route
)3 8 and they are proposing a second hydrant at the
where the driveway narrows down to 20 feet. Sanitary sewers

compliance with the code. They have indicated an entry sign on Route 48 although those
details have not been irictuded at this time. That sign will need to comply with the zoning code.
The building elevatioff§ are residential in character. The siding consists of cement fiberboard
with a stone wainscoting around the bottom. Each of the elevations are finished with additional
stone detail, The interior consists of ten bedrooms per building. Those rooms consist of a closet
and bathroom. There are common areas including the kitchen, living room, dining room, three
season room, media room, laundry room, spa, and office as well as the garage area that will
house the units transportation vehicle. The development is in compliance with the zoning code
pertaining to a PUD. Should the commission recommend approval to the Board of Trustees,
eight conditions have been provided for consideration including additional evergreen plantings.




Ms. Kelly stated that the biggest concern with this property was with the parking. Nurses would
come in to take care of the residents and as the shifts would change; those spots would fill
leaving little parking for other guests.

Mr. Phipps stated that he believes the 30 ft. buffer was plenty big enough. His concern was the
parking as well.

Ms. Kelly invited the applicant to step forward and speak on behalf of

Mr. Jodi Amburgy explained in relation to the parking concerns thatthere will be eight staff
members working' at one time and none of the residents will hg__iig n vehicles on site.

Mr Amburgy stated that he never thought of le sha
Ardiss of what busnie%s goes

Ms. Kelly closed the hearing for the Abode Development and asked if anyone from the public
would like to speak. ¢

No comments were made.

The board discussed the hearing amongst themselves. Mr. Reiners stated that the parking appears
to be under control and that they have space to expand the parking in the future if needed. Mr.
Phipps and Ms. Kelly both stated that everything looked alright to them. Ms. Kelly mentioned
the parking concerns again but the applicant addressed it and everything appears to be fine. Mr.



Phipps stated that he had spoken with the Fire Chief about the space to get the vehicles in and
out when needed and he is okay with i,

Mr. Reiners made a motion to recommend approval of the preliminary site plan and final site
plan with all of the conditions except condition 1, There was a second from Ms. Kelly.

Roll call as follows: Eric Reiners Yes
Cadi Kelly Yes
Dan Phipps Yes

Motion carries.

Ms. McKnight stated that the next case is also a combined Stﬁge 2 pre
plan for Custom Traffic Solutions. The owner is Grateful 7

parking on the south (front) side of the building afi Ed
sides. The gravel areas of the parkmg will be enclosed b3

permit gfavel parking. One loading space 0
the warehouse. Due to the surroundmg prope}tles

Open Space requirem. s, 1 Moun
the building, Roof @Pﬁ I
outlet the roof drains intﬁ"'

Final review and approval by the Warren
| and Water Conservation District will be

xtension is constructed, they would go back and install the
b that ri ght of way. The lighting plan indicates wallpacks at each

signage information w % ncluded. The building is 22 feet in height at the eave and is clad in
metal wall panels. Thé front elevation includes a split and smooth faced block wamscotmg 347
in height that wraps around the sidewalls for a length of eight feet. In addition to the main
entrance at the front, there is one man-door and one loading door on the east elevation and two
man doors with one loading area on the west elevation. Should commission choose to

recommend approval of the combined stage 2 and 3 plans, staff has recommended the following
eight conditions:



1. Revise photometric plan and submit cut sheets on lighting fixtures that
comply with the Hamilton Township Zoning Code prior to issuance of
the Zoning Certificate,

2. Approval by the Warren County Engineer’s Office of the stormwater
management plan in compliance with the OEPA Construction Activity
Permit prior to the issuance of a Zoning Certificate.

3. Approval by the Warren County Soil and Water Conservation District
of the erosion and sediment control plan prior to the issuance of a
Zoning Certificate. £

4, Approval of the public water and samtary *Iali"s"by the Warren County

suance of the Zoning

Warren County
ire Department

Engmeer s Office, ODOT and ] -:é%'amﬂt@n Town$
prior to 1ssua.nce of the Zomﬂg Cerﬁﬁcate

d by the'property owner aldng the
extension of Venture Way to eas ng the north property line, after

construction G

eraci, an gdjoining property owner, had an
ith.the extension of Venture Way and various

issue with this develog ent He‘
procedures that may#tmay not n

nistrator, Brent Centers, spoke with Mr.

=He expressed that he was hoping to have more
ybe that is something that could be set up and addressed
foperty owner to meet their satisfaction.

Ms, McKnight stat they are discussing the property to the north only at this time. The
extension of Venture g&ff would run from west to east.

Mr. Phipps explained that the extension of Venture way is not part of the plat of the land that this
individual is purchasing.

Ms. Kelly stated that when they extend the road, someone’s property would be effected. It is
probably to our advantage to not have an additional drive if it can be avoided.

Ms. Kelly invited the applicant to step forward and speak on behalf of the development,



Mr. Larry Hatfield stated that he represents Custom Traffic Solutions. He explained that when he
became involved with this project and was informed that the extension of Venture Way was
being planned, his customer decided to work with Mr. Geraci and they determined that there is a
tiny corner of the property that will have to be transferred to become part of that roadway. Mr.
Geraci and CTS are in the process of working something out and Mr. Hatfield believes that each
party’s attorneys are formulating the proper documents to make that transition.

Ms. Kelly asked if the applicant was aware that if that road does extend, it is their responsibility
to put in the landscaping.

Ms. Kelly stated that the burden would be placed on the propﬁ’téy ow

:%%E
Missy Karrick stepped forward and stated that everythmg was“dtscussed and'agreed to and will
be memorialized in the proper documentation and sig S
paperwork. 4

Ms. Kelly asked if anyone from the public would like to sp
therefor Ms. Kelly closed the public portjen of the hearing.

The Board discussed the case amongst them
conditions 7 and 8.

uctiggn stating that the township has hired her as a Zoning
¢ another full time person. Interviews are scheduled so that

. Once someone is hired, she will help with the transition of
handing over more réspongibilities. One of her tasks is to evolve a good schedule for deadlines
and notices including otices to Zoning Commission. Moving forward, please add the second
Monday of each month to the calendar as the date for the Zoning Commission meetings. As there
are cases, we will be in touch to make sure there is a quorum as well as to let everyone know if
there are no cases and there is net a need for a meeting that month.

With no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 8:06 pm.



HAMILTON TOWNSHIP ZONING COMMISSION
January 13, 2020

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m.
Members present: Cadi Kelly, Dan Riegner, Amanda Webb, Brady Hood and Julie Perelman.

Ms. Kelly swore in all persons wishing to give testimony during this hearing.

Ms. Kelly tabled the meeting minutes from July 8, 2019 due to not having'a.quorum from that
meeting,

Mr. Riegner made a motion with a second from Mr. Hood to
the December 9, 2019 meeting,.

Roll call as follows: Brady Hood
Cadi Kelly
Julie Perelman
Dan Riegner

Amanda Webb

Ms. Kelly reviewed the process of the hea :
staff report, The applicant will then have a chance
support and opposition will be glven the oppoﬁunL

All members agreed to
Vice Chair and

a provl sal for Burger King. The applicant is Mannik and Smith
‘arolls LLC. The property location is 5463 State Route 48,

with a drive-thru, The fag¢ade will be composed of a brlck masonry base, stone vertical accents
and stucco. A right turn lane from State Route 48 will be constructed to access the site as well as
a private drive. Parking consists of 33 parking spaces, two of which are handicap accessible. The
pavement will be concrete or asphalt, as noted on the plans. Signage will include a ground
mounted monument sign and signage on the building which will have to be approved via a
separate zoning certificate. Lighting will be LED and they are working to get that in line with our
Zomng code. The Storm water detention is accounted for by a modification to the existing pond
in the northwest corner of the property. The Warren County Engineer’s Office is working with
TPC Riversbend Golf Course to make sure the detention plans make sense for ev eryone,



The site is currently zoned B-1 PUD. This is a revised Stage 2 and 3 PUD. Previously the
proposal for this parcel in 2014 was for a ‘Kiddie Academy Daycare’ and for whatever reason
that fell through, The Carrolls Group purchased this property back in September. Hamilton
Township Zoning Code section 4.8.3.J outlines the requirements for restaurants with drive-thru’s
stating that any restaurant with a drive-thru must be a minimum of 100 feet away from any
residential district. The developer is actually reducing the size of the lot from 1.5 acres down to
1.1 acres to provide a larger distance of 245 feet away from any residential district. All audible
devices such as loudspeakers, automobile service order devices, and similar instruments shall not
be located within 300 feet of any residential dwelling unit. The plans now show that it will be
380 feet away from any residential dwelling unit putting it in compliance ‘with our zoning code.
The tallest point on this Burger King will be 24 feet at its Apex. ng complies with our
zoning code. The drive-thru does meet the Hamilton Townshi j :
Stacking Space requirements states that a minimum of 6 cars
w1th a separate stackmg lane that is a minimum W1dth 0

the zoning code that states illumination canﬁffit exce
Regional Planning Commission (RPC) also made

deemed qjecessarv by ODOT and the Warren
Office b‘ﬁsed on trafﬁ& tudles requlred of the apphcant

Building exteriofmaterials and character subject to Hamilton Township Trustees
approval.

Recommendations were also given from the Warren County Water and Sewer Department, the
Warren County Engineer’s Office, and ODOT who stated that they are requiring a right turn lane

on State Route 48 to facilitate the proposed restaurant use on the site. Burger King has agreed to
comply with all comments.

Staff is recommending approval based on meeting the recommendations of partnering agencies
such as compliance with the Hamilton Township Zoning Code and recommendations from the

b2



Zoning Commission, compliance with recommendations from Warren County Regional Planning
Commission (RPC), compliance with the requirements of the Warren County Soil & Water
Conservation District, and lastly compliance with the requirements of the Warren County
Engineers Office, specifically storm water basin requirements.

Ms. Kelly asked Mr. Kraemer to review the distance from the residential neighborhood. Based
off the way she was looking at the plans, it did not appear to meet the requirements of a
minimum of 300 feet from any residential district. Mr. Kraemer reviewed the plans with her and
pomted out that they are reducing the size of the lot and therefore it wi now exceed the
minimum requirement.

Ty

Mes. Perelman referenced the existing Wooded area between So_ .

on Elementary and this

responsible for maintaining that? Mr. Kraemer explame
developer will not tear it down and it will remain.

The board further reviewed plans and pro
actually belongs to the school district.

5 leftover after the parcet size reduction.
partof the other parcel.

Terﬁueggen clarified the dimensions of the property. The
rom that line to the closest rear residential line, 70 feet will be
 overall’development. The menu board sits 35 feet from the property line.

het 65 feet to the actual building.

transferred back t
In addition, there is

Ms. Kelly asked if thefe were plans for the road that will be put in? Mr, Terbrueggen explained
that would be up to the developer. He assumes that it would extend to the other parcels as three
lots were originally proposed so that drive will serve those additional lots.

Mr. Terbrueggen explained that the north side will consist of three large deciduous trees. Below
that will be a mixture of deciduous flowering shrubs and evergreens. The east side of the lot
along State Route 48 will consist of three deciduous trees such as Honey Locust, evergreens and
flowering deciduous shrubs. On the south side of the parcel, adjacent to the school, there are



existing White Pines that are 25-30 feet tall and those will be maintained and additional
landscaping will be supplemented in between them where there is current open space. A mixture
of shrubs and perennials will be planted around the menu board. Next, the lighting plans were
discussed in detail explaining that the illumination is now well under the regulation for the
zoning code. All four sides of the building are a brick blend as well as some stone elements.

Ms. Kelly stated that if this becomes a dedicated street, there will be a requirement for so many
windows on the building, Ms. Aldridge stated that they could add a window into the design for
the building.

en stated that the storm
 to the existing pond for
the county,

Ms. Webb asked if the storm water could be explained. Mr. Terb
water will be collected in a storm sewer that outlets to a ditch tha

Ray Warrick expressed his concerns about the zoning
storm water runoff.

uns alongside the fence and who that belongs to. Many
nd from South Lebanon Elementary. Other individuals use
course as well as Kroger,

Jennifer Faz expressed concerns for the safety and security of the children at South Lebanon
Elementary. She also mentioned that traffic is already heavy in the area so she is worried how
adding this Burger King will play into that.

Brad Callahan spoke about the smell of the establishment that will encase the area. He believes
that there are other places in the township that are better suited for this development.



Ginny Longnecker is another resident concerned about the safety of children at the school and in
the surrounding neighborhoods as well as for her home and many of her neighbors.

Nick Weber suggested that the Board look into the violent crime statistics for fast food

restaurants. He brought up topics such as the smell, appearance, trash collection, hours of
operation and safety.

Heather Alley is concerned about the resale values of the homes in the surrounding
neighborhoods as well as the safety of residents.

n the community but he
getting worse and this

Rob Wilmot thanked the Burger King franchise for wanting to iny
does not believe this location is a good fit. The current traffic {1

across from this parcel.

Jason Jefferies asked why this is a proposed Burger&i
1s zoned for Commercial use. The land owner is

der our zoning code. So, they are not asking for a zone change
ial building on a residential lot). Per our zoning code, if this is one of the
permitted uses forthis zoned parcel, it is hard for the board to turn it down. The township has a
comprehensive plan‘in plage and part of that plan is that this district is zoned commercial, Ms.
Rust asked why more lgfters were not sent out about this development. Mr. Kraemer responded
that per our zoning cofle, we are only required to notify property owners within two hundred feet
of this parcel and give at least ten days’ notice before the zoning meetings.

(ex: build a co

Ms. Perelman spoke up about what she believes the perception of the role of this Zoning
Commission is amongst residents and she clarified as follows; this particular Board is meant to
look at what is being presented, how it fits within our codes and our overall plan, and then the
Zoning Commission makes recommendations based on those plans, to the Trustees. Ms. Kelly
also agreed that this Board is a ‘recommending body” that does not get to say yes or no. The



Ttustees ultimately have the decision of whether this is approved or not. When this property was
rezoned to business in 2014 there was undoubtedly more notice sent out to surrounding
properties owners to let them know what was going on. However, some of the existing homes
adjacent to this parcel may not have been built when that occurred. Since this hearing is for a
developer that is wishing to build on a parcel that is zoned for their type of development, the
appropriate notices were issued.

Matt Luecke, Director of Business Affairs for Kings Schools, stated that South Lebanon
Elementary is within two hundred feet but was not notified as they are ot part of Hamilton
Township. There is a fear of increased foot traffic to and from the establishment and the school
as well as a fear of children crossing State Route 48 to get to and Burger King, The school
wants to be good neighbors during this process. "

Mr. Hood asked Mr. Luecke how Kings feels about the
larger Kroger parking lot directly on the other side of
conversation took place about that. Fortunately, the,6
Kroger parking lot. The school is pressed to the nétth
pressed to the south of their property line making the
that he is very thankful for the parents that shared their cong
that the school district can be a part of
district to find solutions to these valid co

dren d%not tend to drift
heir pr

h closer together. He stated
with the school and he hopes
1d allow the developer and the

€ éefing is not a Carrols owned business. A brand-

. ngent smell. Technology has changed so that the\ operate
the bg;ég sses differentl

amblent

gol o build a fence or put up some kind of barrler if that will help
al landscaping can be added at the back of the property as well.
She stated that Carr G prides themselves on helping communities so they will work with
whoever they need to sg all concerns are addressed. Neyer owns the property and will own the
remaining parcels arotfrgﬁd this one as well. Carrols will be improving the storm water runoff
system greatly to make sure it is adequate for all future development in this location. This
particular property is zoned for their intended use so that is why they look at it. There will not be
a sign placed on the interstate to direct people to the location. They do not view the interstate as a
draw. She explained the Carrols company and stated that she is very passionate about this
company and brand. They are working on several Burger King’s in the Cincinnati market and
bought into the Cincinnati market a few years ago from another company. There are still Burger




King’s in the area that Carrols does not own but they would like to. The company wants all of
their locations to be clean and modernized.

Ms. Kelly asked it they just built the location on Route 42 in Sharonville. That is a Carrol’s
owned establishment,

Mt. Terbrueggen explained that they are not going to draw from the expressway, This will be
probably 2-3 miles from the highway so there will not be any signs directing traffic to this
location. He acknowledged that State Route 48 is a very busy road. He dges not condone any
foot traffic crossmg this road but the education will ultimately fall on:the parents to provide. The
stormwater piping will be sized to convey the water per the Fngingers Office regulations. The
ditch, even if temporary, will be sized rightfully. The detentio 1l also be sized
appropriately, There will be a flood route in the case of large 1orms e working with the

hen building the

Klng most hkely will not benefit anythmg The fence, mou
light from coming through. The biggest Bone
there so it has been proposed to add som
block the building and lighting.

t. She mentloned that the hours of operation
S bcfore the Trustees. She asked if there was a traffic
fidge both stated that they were not required to have
wing them to have full access to turn right and left onto
stated that it was initially allowed but we are working with

Ms. Peretman aske thc employee count is for this establishment since the hours will be
approximately 6am to TIpm. Ms. Aldridge stated that there are roughly 35-40 employees. The
lunch rush from 11amfto 2pm will most likely have 7-10 employees at a time. Breakfast and
dinner will only have around 4-7 for each shift. Employees arrive no earlier than 5am and leave
no later than midnight.

There was discussion of adding another window into the design if the private drive becomes a
dedicated street.



Mr. Riegner made a motion with a second from Mr. Hood to recommend approval to the Board
of Trustees with the following conditions;
- Adding a buffer to the entire southern property line (school side) that is non-
organic/fencing of some sort,
- Working with the developer to increase the buffer to the western property line (residential
side) where there is an existing fence.
- All staff recommendations as listed above.
- Assuming that the drive becomes a public road, the building structure will need to reflect
the requirements for that dedicated street.
- ODOT requirements for a right turn onto State Route 48 to fagj
restaurant
- Working with the Warren County Engineers Office to nr
stormwater basin are in compliance with the County’s

-the proposed

.that the plans for the

Roll call is as follows: Cadi Kelly
Julie Perelman
Dan Riegner
Amanda Webb
Brady Hood

Motion carries,

Ms. Kelly explained that the next item on
CBD 0Oil specific retail stores.

: tion for zoning regulations for

tating that thig'hearing is aconsideration for zoning

il stores in Flamilton Township. This is following a one-

hip Trustees who are asking the Zoning

5 for these types of businesses as soon as

Oil.was made federally legal by a bill passed on

-2 1io-Legislature decriminalized hemp and licensed

ate of OhiozCBD is short for cannabidiol which is a compound found
ij “arefelated but they are two different plants. Hemp

s‘avery low level of THC (tetrahydrocannabinol) which is the active ingredient that

produces the high in marijuana. The maximum level of THC in hemp is .03% however many

CBD retail stores promote that you can get many of the same benefits from CBD oil without the

psychoactive effects of THC. Under the new Jaw, the Ohio Department of Agriculture issues

hemp cultivation and hemp processing licenses allowing hemp to be grown and processed in

Ohio. Previously the State Board Pharmacy formulated a rule that the increasingly popular CBD

made from hemp, can only be sold in marijuana dispensaries as a controlled substance. However,

the new Ohio law now states that bemp products include cosmetics, personal care products,

dietary supplements or food intended for animal or human consumption, cloth, cordage, fiber,

fuel, paint, paper, particle board and any other product containing one form of cannabinoids or
cannabidiols.

Mr. Kraemer looked into what local municipalities are doing pertaining to CBD Oil. Deerfield
Township placed a one-year moratorium back in July 2019. “Your CBD Store” expressed



interest in opening a shop in Hamilton Township. They already operate out of Anderson
Township as well. Mr, Kraemer is not aware of any regulations that they might have. They have
a few CBD stores operating right now. The City of Montgomery has one store that is operating
right now,

The question is, do we put any regulations on these retail shops? Do we just allow them to be in
the township and open where they would like? Or do we consider regulations similar to what
Deerfield is exploring such as location restrictions? They are looking at 2,500-foot buffer
between CBD establishments. That would prevent an entire strip mall of multiple CBD stores
from opening. We could look at distance restrictions for schools, libraries ‘government buildings,
residential areas, etc, Mr. Kraemer would like to have an expert meone who is well versed
in CBD Oil explain what types and varieties are being sold. Thete seen.to be a lot of different
types of CBD oil. One item that popped up is that a very small numberofstores seem to sell
CBD that you can vape. Deerfield is also putting a cap on:the number of stores that are allowed
in their township. They are allowing one store per 10,000 residents. So onl total CBD Oil

anything with this? Mr. Kraemer explained yes, we have ans
Deerfield Township. s

Dr. Duane Titus with neville Family Chiropractic spoke on his knowledge of CBD Oil.

There are not many reﬁulations on the law. He started looking into CBD Oil before the passage
of the farm bill and prior to legalization in the State of Ohio. Looking at the medical literature
that is available, it has benefits of use such as being a neuro protectant, an antioxidant,
antipsychotic, anti-anxiety, anti-inflammatory, etc. His objective was to go out and find the best
product available to provide for his patients. He found a USDA certified, organic, full spectrum
CBD Oil. This particular option does contain THC which is the “high” component in marijuana.
CBD is derived from hemp. Hemp is a plant, same genus species, as marijuana. Marijuana is a
flowery plant, hemp is stalkier like bamboo. Any product out there should be third party tested, if



they are not, steer people away from them. CBD is only one of about a hundred cannabinoids
from the hemp plant and the marijuana plant, In hemp it is highly predominant. The other 99
cannabinoids, including THC are in there but at much lower levels. That is why hemp is ty pically
only grown with .3% THC. THC is the component that shows up on drug screens. There is not
enough of it present that it would cause impairment. THC free is what individuals such as first
responders are taking because it does not contain any THC. That can never be USDA certified
organic because of the processing. Most people take an isolate which is CBD only. CBD has its
effects in the body but it is better to use the entire plant.

Ms. Kelly mentioned that there is no prescription and the seller can bus
want to buy to put out for consumers,

Mr. Riegner asked at what level does THC start to have an effect?

Ms. Perelman stated that again, the THC is subjective
for another person.

Dr. Titus explained that his practice offers a éel tab
come in gummles sublingual 011 (place underthe t

results to find anwhat is in

product that will be consumed.

Mr. Hood stated tha

orney General has released a “guide” to follow with these hemp and
CBD products.

ko

Ms. Kelly asked if there is an age requirement for selling CBD Oil?

Dr. Titus stated that he is not aware of one,

Mr. Riegner asked how long this has been around? Is this something that has been in existence
for a long time and someone just happened to promote it differently?

10



Dr. Titus stated that it has become a political stigma because it has been perceived differently in
comparison to marijuana. Hemp products have been around for a very long time.

Mr. Hood stated that he believes regulations are too arbitrary. He thinks the market should
regulate itself,

Ms. Perelman commented that she read several articles that said the Department of Agriculture is
responsible for inspections. She thinks that one of the regulations we could put is how many of
these stores do we actually want in the township?

All members thanked Dr. Titus for sharing his knowledge about

Ms. Kelly believes that the topic should be tabled for now un
would also like to figure out for legal purposes if the towns
something that is legal.

Mr. Riegner made a motion with a second from Ms

Roll call is as follows: Julie Perelman Yes
Dan Riegrier
Amanda Wel
Brady Hood
Cadi Kelly

Motion carries,
Ms. Kelly made a mo here was a second from Mr. Hood.

All in favor.

11



BYLAWS
For The
HAMILTON TOWNSHIP ZONING COMMISSION

Hamilton Township, Warren County, Ohio

Enacted March 9, 2020




Contents:

Section L.
Section IL.
Section III,
Section 1V.
Section V.
Section VI,
Section VII.
Section VIII.

Section [X.

NAME AND PURPOSE

MEETINGS

MEMBERSHIP

OFFICERS

STAFF ASSISTANC



II.

NAME AND PURPOSE

The Hamilton Township Zoning Commission (hereafter “Commission”) has been
established pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 519.01. Its purpose is to
advise the Board of Hamilton Township Trustees (hereafter “Trustees”) on text
and map amendments, and to review Planned Unit Developments (hereafter
“PUDs”), benefitting planning, zoning and economic development for the citizens
of Hamilton Township.

MEETINGS

A. The Commission shall have one regular meeting each month as necessary,
which shall be held on the second Monday of the month at 7:00PM unless
otherwise determined by the Commission, and shall be held in the Meeting
Hall of the Hamilton Township Administration Building (7780 South State
Route 48, Maineville, Ohio) or as determined by the Commission.

All meetings of the Commission shall be open to the public and notice thereof
shall be given in accordance with the Ohio “Open Meeting Law.” A schedule
of regular meetings shall be posted in the Planning and Zoning Office and on
the township website at: www.hamilton-township.org.

There shall be no more than four items heard at any one scheduled meeting. If
more than four applications have been received prior to a scheduled meeting,
the Chairperson can decide to either call a special meeting or defer the
additional applications to next month’s meeting.

B. The Commission may schedule a second meeting each month, which shall be
held on the fourth Monday of the month at 7:00PM. The meeting shall be held
in the Meeting Hall of the Hamilton Township Administration Building (7780
South State Route 48, Maineville, Ohio) or as determined by the Commission.

C. A special meeting may be called at any time by the Zoning Director
(hereinafter Director), by the Chairperson or by two or more members of the
Commission and shall be held at the place where regular meetings are held,
unless otherwise authorized by a majority of the Commission. Special meeting
notices, including a summary of the purpose of said meeting, shall be posted
in accordance with the Ohio “Open Meeting Law.”

D. At least forty-eight (48) hours before each meeting, a notice stating the time

and place of the meeting and the matters to be considered at the meeting shall
be given by the Director to each member of the Commission by delivery
thereof to the member’s residence or by depositing the same in the United
States Mail. Any news media requesting notification of special meetings shall



be given 24-hour advance notice and immediate notice of any emergency
meetings.

E. No matter shall be considered at any meeting which is not on the calendar for
such meeting, except by consent of a majority of the Commission present.

F. A quorum of the Commission shall be a majority of the membership on the
Commission, excluding any Alternates. Such quorum may exercise the
powers of the Commission and the action of the majority (i.e. at least three
members excluding abstentions) of the full Commission is the action of the
Commission.

G. Public Hearings shall be recorded o
being retained in accordance wi

‘in minute form, all material

. MEMBERSHIP

e--members, appoiﬁ ¢d by the
th one member’s term expiring each

Trustees for five yi
year. The Trustees

;hysically view the property for which a zone change is
the zone-change hearing takes place.

IV.  OFFICERS

A. At the first regular meeting of each year, the Commission shall select from its
membership a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary. All officers shall
serve a term of one year, or until their successors are selected and assume the
role, All officers shall be eligible for re-election for consecutive terms for all
three positions.



B. The Chairperson (or Vice-Chairperson when the Chairperson is absent) shall
preside at all meetings of members of the Commission and shall exercise,
subject to the control of the Commission, a general supervision of the affairs
of the Commission and shall perform generally all the duties incident to the
position and such other duties as may be assigned by the Commission.

The Chairperson presiding over a regular or special meeting of the
Commission shall have the same privilege of originating and seconding
motions, voting on all matters and partlclpatmg in discussions and procedures,
as allowed to all other members of the Commiission, without relinguishing the
chair,

e records annually to the
ort to the Trustees, The Secretary

1l receive all applications and examine the documents and
bmitted therewith to assure that it is complete and that the

shall be responsible for docketing, placing matters on the
calendar and preparation and publication of public notice of the hearing in one
or more newspapers of general circulation as selected by the Commission,

C. The Director shall handle any correspondence reasonably necessary and/or
appropriate to carry out these functions and copies of correspondence received
and sent shall be provided to the Chairpetson,

D. Thereafter, the Director shall prepare a written report (a Staff Report) to the
Commission as to matters under its jurisdiction. Advice of counsel shall be

5




VL

VIIL.

received and entered in the minutes before disposition of any question of law
or matter requiring legal interpretation or advice.

The Hamilton Township Law Director shall provide legal advice to the
Commission as to matters under its jurisdiction, Advice of counsel shall be
received and entered in the minutes before disposition of any question of law or
matter requiring ltegal interpretation or advice.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

It shall be the policy of the Commission
required by law or except on such matters
public concern because of the effectiofits decisi on the entire community or
a substantial part thereof. -

public hearings except as

A. Notice of public hearings shalt: if there be no
such provision, as required by these.reg 1S, i ' ic hearings

PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS

At public hearings, individuals in attendance shall register their names and
addresses. There will be a swearing-in of all individuals wishing to be heard at the
hearing. In the interest of efficient procedure, time limits may be set by the
Chairperson for individuals wishing to be heard at public hearings. The procedure
for hearings shall be as follows:

1. The Chairperson shall outline the procedure for the hearing.




2. The Secretary (or Director) shall read the legal notice as published.

The Director’s Staff Report shall be presented.

4. The recommendation of the Warren County Regional Planning

Commission shall be read.

The applicant or applicant’s representative shall make a statement(s).

6. Comments/Questions from the audience members may be presented,
first by those in favor of the application followed by those in
opposition of the application.

7. Comments/Questions from members of the Commission may be
presented,

8. The Applicant shall be permitted
statement(s).

9. Request for a motion and se

Commission may vote to.4

later date for the recei

(%]

b

pportunity to make a final

ade by the Commission or the
g in progress and schedule a

subject to being overruled by a majority vote of the
ndance on a motion duly made, seconded and passed:

Decisions, including any conditions relating thereto, shall be made by a motion,
which shall be seconded. All motions shall be sufficiently detailed for the record.
The Chairperson will then preside over discussion amongst Commission members
relating to the case. Members of the Commission shall be permitted to freely state
their opinions and ask any questions. Thereafter, the Chairperson shall instruct the
Secretary (or Director) to call the roll for a vote.



IX.

The concurring vote of a majority of the members of the Commission present at
the meeting shall be necessary to have a motion passed. A vote of abstention shall
not be counted as a concurring vote. A tie vote shall result in a failure of the
motion.

AMENDMENTS

These bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds vote provided that notice of the
proposed change is made at the previous meetin

These bylaws are under consideration for
of the Hamilton Township Zoning Co
January 13, 2003,

n at the March 9, 2020 meeting
‘he bylaws were last adopted on



- HAMILTON TOWNSHIP ZONING COMMISSION

Request:

gnd Hearmg Cons1derat10n of Regulatlons

- CBD Oil Establishments

- March 9, 2020 at 7:00PM

- On December 4, 2020, Hamilton Township Trustees passed a 1 year

zoning moratorium on the issuance of zoning related permits and
approvals for the principle and conditional use of land for hemp o
related/CBD oil purposes. The Trustees requested Zonifig Commission -

review this matter at the next scheduled meeting to determine What if any,
-~ régulations should bé placed on CBD.oil-specific retail stores,

The Zoning Commission held its 1% hearing on CBD 0il Establishments
on Monday, January 13, 2020. Many issues were disciisséd at that -
meeting, and it also included a presentation from Dr. Duane Titus of

| Mamevﬂle Pharmacy Thm w111 be the 2“d heanng cn the issue.

- CBD waS made legal federally by passage of the Farm Bill of 201 8,
_ '_passed on Décerniber 20, 201 8. On July 30, 2019 the Ohio Legislature
" “decriminalized hemp and licensed hemp cultivation in the state of Ohio.

" :j.CBD 011 1s cannabldml a compound found in the hemp plant Hernp and
': manjuana are related but actually two d1fferent plants Hemp contams a

. produces the “hlgh” in maruuana The max1mum leVel of THC in hemp is
0.03%. ‘However, CBD stores promote that you can get many of the same
j_beneﬁts from CBD w1thout the' psyehoactwe effects of THC

Under the'niew law, the Ohio Department of Agnculture issues hemp
cultivation and hemp processmg lleenses allowmg hemp to be grown and
processed in'Ohio.  *

- Previously the State Board of Pharmacy promulgated a rule that the

mcreasmgly popular CBD made from hemp, ¢an only be sold in medical

* marijuana dispensaries as a controlled substance. Howeveér, the new Ohio

law now states that hemp products include “cosmetics, personal care
products, dietary supplements or food intended for animal or human
consumption, cloth, cordage, fiber, fuel, paint, paper, particieboard, and
any other product containing one or more cannabinoids denved from
hemp, including cannabidiol”.




Local Mumclpahtles

Deerfield Townshlp has also placed a 1 year moratonum on CBD oif retaﬂ stores
and is currently considering regulations as well. Warren County RPC recently
passed récommendations on Zoning Code Text Amendments for Deerfield
Township related to CBD Estabhshments

Anderson Towns}up No regulat1ons 1 CBD 011 retall store is open there (Your
CBD Store)

City of Montgomery:hes a CBD' Oil retail store o'perating on Montgomery Road.

- West-Ch_es.ter has a CBD oil retail store operating on Tylers Place Bvld. .-

Staff Conmderatlons

Potentlal Regulations

o Loca_t10 ) 'l‘restnctlons‘?

Should no regulatlons be placed on CBD 011 spe01ﬁc stores?

""" No CBD Oil store shall be perlmtted w1th111 1 000 fect (+ or -) of another

... CBD store. Thig is to prevent a strip mall of only ( CBD establishments,

> “-Maintaina 1 ,000 foot (of othet d1stance) buffer from all schools, libfarics,
o commumty centers and govemment bu1ld1ngs res1dent1a1 zones, etc,

- :Pemnttmg only ! CBD Oil-specific stores selling USDA certified organic CBD

L Qil? Accofdmg to.the US Department of Agnculture (U} SDA), the term ‘organic”
_refers to any 1tem that is grown or. produced without the

~. modified organisms, pesticides, synthetic, fertilizets; sewage studge, or ionizing
“radiation, “USDA certified organic” means. that a govemment-approved certifier
‘has mspected the growing and processing conditions to. ensure they meet official

standards. Therefore, “organic CBD oil” is extracted from orgamcally—grown

. _[hemp and then processed w1th0ut any chermcal addltlves
" Prohibit the cale of any CBD Oil that c can be vaped?

- .. Place a cap on the number of CBD, 011 Retail Stores allowed in Hamilton

T ownshlp‘? Deerfield T ownshlp is con31dermg placing a cap of 1 store per 10,000

. residents. Hamilton Townshlp has roughly 30,000 re31dents so a cap could be 3
:,.totalstores s L R :

| ._-"o_ther Reguk_atkéhS,fd consider..?. .



Ctatf RQPUY-I' Exhibit 1

o g
““

=EE B

DATE: February 27, 2020
T0: Warren County Regional Planning Commission Executive Committee
FROM: Brian Evans, Planning Intern
SUBJECT: Deerfield Township Zoning Code Text Amendments

BACKGROUND

The Deerfield Township Board of Trustees initiated amendments to the official Deerfield Township Zoning Resolution
on February 4, 2020. The Board of Township Trustees has established definitions for cannabidiol (CBD), CBD, CBD
Establishments, and Hemp. The Board has also set parameters for where these establishments are permitted uses in
the zoning code. The Township currently has in place a moratorium on these uses that is set to expire on July 25,
2020.

SOURCE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT: Deerfield Township Trustees

ZONING CODE SECTION:
1. Establishing Definitions for Section 12.02 cannabidiol (CBD), CBD, CBD establishment, and Hemp.
2. Setting Use-Specific Standards for CBD Establishments in Section 4.08.
3. Add CBD Establishments fo Table 4.06-A "Permitted Use Table™.

JUSTIFICATION: The cumrent Zoning Code has no provisions to regulate CBD establishments. None of the included
definitions are currently in the zoning code. The Township has agreed to dllow CBD establishments under limited
conditions. Their primary concern is to prevent the concentration CBD establishments in any one area, thus
spacing regulations. The Township has also proposed to define CBD establishments as retail operations having 50%

or greater of their inventory being dedicated to CBD products.

RECOMMENDATION

Recommend approval of the proposed amendment with the following suggestions.

1. Define "CBD Products." Clearly state the products the Township wants to regulate.

2. Clarify the statement "50% or greater of it's merchandise" in the definition of CBD establishment fo

provide a more definable measure.
3. Consider lowering the percentage to qualify as a CBD establishment from 50% to a lower number.

4. Research the ability to establish a separation standard between the use and schools, libraries, parks,

similar to ORC 4301.17 for the regulation of liquor stores.



PROPOSED AMENDMENT

Proposed language (see Exhibit 1),

STAFF ANALYSIS

The Board of Township Trustees have determined that the Zoning Resclution needs to be amended 1o Include
definitions of key terms and set base regulations over CBD establishments. These provisions provided by Deerfield
Township will allow the industry to exist but in a controlled and safe manner,

Stan Williams, AICP
Executive Director



Exhibit 1: Proposed Amendment

EXHIBIT A
Deerfield Township Zoning Resolution = Proposed CBD Business Text Amendments

TasLE 4.086-A: PERMITTED USE TABLE

UsE-
SPECIFIC

STAMNDARDS
Use LONING DNSTRICTS

P = Permitted Use
P35 = Permitted Use

with Use-Specific
Standards

C = Conditional Use

BUSINESS AND MIXED LISES

CBD Establishment | | l I | [ I I P I Fs ] PS I Ps I P ]

Section 4.08: Use-Specific Standards

The following saction contains additional standards that shall be met by an applicant for uses that are sither
permitted with use-specific standards and conditional uses. In addition to meeting the following standards, all

applicants for conditional uses shall ba required to comply with any and all other applicable provisions of this
zoning rasalution,

C. Business anp Mixep Uses

| 8 CBD Establishments
CBD Establishments are subject to the following standards:

#.  The owner shall demonstrate that the issuance of the zoning certificate would not increase the
number of such CBD Establishments operating within the township at the time of application to
be mora than ona per each ten thousand (10,000) inhabitants residing in the township according
ta the most recent decennial census.

b Any lot containing a CBD Establishment shall be located at least 2,500 feat from any lot
containing another CBD Establishment.

€.  Cultivation and‘or processing of hemp shall be prohibited.

Section 12.02: Definitions

Cannabidiol (CED)

Cannabidol comipound, containing a delta-9 tatrahydrocannabinal concentration of not more than three-tenths
per cent, derived from hemp.

CED

See "Cannabidicl”

CBD Establishment

A, retail establishment having 50% or greater of its merchandise dedicated to the sale of CBD products.

Hemp

The plant Cannabiz sativa L and any part of that plant including seeds thereof and all derivatives, extracts,

cannabinoids. isomers, acids, salts, and salts of isomers, whether growing or not, with a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinal
concentration of not mare than thres-tanths per cent on a dry waight basis.



